
TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY 
BOARD OF ALDERMEN MEETING 

February 5, 2018  7:00 P.M. 
REVISED 

1. CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Feather

2. MOMENT OF SILENCE

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Mr. Zach Huddleston

4. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

5. APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AGENDA
a. Approval of the Minutes

• Recess Meeting Minutes – January 8, 2018
• Regular Meeting Minutes – January 2, 2018

b. Departmental Reports (Reports in Board packet)
c. Financial Reports

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS (All comments are limited to 6 minutes. No sharing of
minutes with other citizens)

7. GUESTS AND PRESENTATIONS
a. Cold Storage Presentation

8. TOWN MANAGER’S UPDATE
a. 2018 Board Retreat Update – February 16-17
b. Action Needed:  Policy Change (Increase cost for Bereavement Flowers)
c. Contract with Martha Cranford (Contract for Accounting Services)

9. OLD BUSINESS
a. Fisher/Brinkley Property Update
b. Board Direction on Potential Property Sale of Town Sport Field

(Mr. Marcel Renn)

Town of Granite Quarry Page 1 2/5/2018



10. NEW BUSINESS AND ACTION ITEMS
a. Action Needed: Change to Required Signatures on F&M Accounts
b. Action Needed: Accept the Locally Administered Project - State

Contingency Agreement between NCDOT and Granite Quarry (WBS:
47726)

c. Action Needed:  Accept the Locally Administered Project – State
Contingency Agreement between NCDOT and Granite Quarry (WBS:
47727)

d. Action Needed:  Disposal of Maintenance Surplus Property
e. Action Needed:  Disposal of Police Surplus Property
f. Action Needed:  Budget Amendment Request 12A  – To move funds

between budget line items within the Police Department to cover
overspent accounts during the operation of the department (fiscal year
2017-2018)

g. Black History Month Proclamation
h. Notice to Government Entities Receiving Court Costs and Fines – Graham

Corriher

11. MAYOR’S NOTES – Announcements and Date Reminders
a. Ready Rating Emergency Program – CCOG – February 6 at 10:00 A.M. –

12:00 Noon @ CCOG Offices, 9815 David Taylor Road, Suite 100 in
Charlotte, NC (See attached flyer)

b. CCOG Board Orientation & Refresher – February 7 @ 5:00 P.M. – 6:00
P.M. @ CCOG Offices (See attached flyer)

c. CCOG Board of Delegates Annual Meeting – February 7 at 6:15 P.M. @
CCOG Offices

d. Planning Board Meeting – February 12 @ 5:30 P.M. @ Town Hall
e. North Carolina 2018 Boundary and Annexation Survey Workshop –

February 14th @ CCOG Offices (See attached flyer)
f. Parents Night Out – Friday, February 16 @ 6:30 P.M. – 9:30 P.M.
g. Board Retreat – Friday, February 16 9:00 A.M. – 4:30 P.M. and Saturday,

February 17 at 9:00 A.M. – 2:00 P.M. @ Town Hall
h. Parks and Recreation Committee Meeting, February 19 @ 5:30 P.M.
i. Revitalization Team Meeting – February 20 @ 3:30 P.M. @ Town Hall
j. Cabarrus-Rowan MPO Meeting February 28 @ 5:30 P.M. @ UNC Building

on the NC Research Campus
k. SAVE THE DATE: 4th Annual Creative Solutions for Thriving

Communities, CCOG Regional Conference, April 12 @ Harris Conference
Center, Charlotte, N.C. (See attached flyer)

12. ADJOURNMENT

***Board Photos will be taken immediately after meeting. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 2 2/5/2018



TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY 
BOARD OF ALDERMEN MEETING 
Monday, January 8, 2018  5:30 P.M. 

Recess Meeting 

Members Present:  Mayor Bill Feather, Alderman John Linker, Alderman Kim Cress. 

Member(s) Absent:  Mayor Pro-Tem Jim LaFevers, Alderman Jim Costantino 

Staff:  Mr. Phil Conrad – Town Manager, Ms. Tanya Word – Town Clerk, Mr. Steve 
Blount – Town Planner, Mrs. Shelly Shockley, Planning Coordinator 

Call to Order – Mayor Feather called the meeting to order and requested a motion to 
come out of recess from January 2, 2018. 

ACTION: Alderman Linker made a motion to come out of recess from January 2, 2018 
at 5:30 P.M. Alderman Cress seconded the motion. The motion passed with all in favor. 

Mayor Feather noted that we will now go into the Joint Planning Board and Board 
meeting and turned it over to Planner Steve Blount. 

ADJOURNMENT:  Mayor Pro-Tem LaFevers made a motion to adjourn the recess 
meeting at 7:23 P.M. Aldermen Linker seconded the motion. The motion passed with all 
in favor. 

Respectively Submitted 

Tanya Maria Word 
Town Clerk 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 3 2/5/2018



TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY 
BOARD OF ALDERMEN MEETING 
Tuesday, January 2, 2018  7:00 P.M. 

Meeting Minutes 
RECESS MEETING ▪ JANUARY 8, 2018 ▪ 5:30 P.M. 

Members Present:  Mayor Bill Feather, Mayor Pro Jim LaFevers, Alderman Kim Cress, 
Alderman John Linker 

Member(s) Absent:  Alderman Jim Costantino 

Staff:  Mr. Phil Conrad – Town Manager, Ms. Tanya Word – Town Clerk/HR Officer, Mr. 
Scott Stewart – Deputy Clerk/Finance/HR Analyst, Mr. Jim Philyaw – Finance Officer, 
Mr. Dale Brown – Fire Chief, Mr. Jason Hord – Maintenance Supervisor, Mr. Mark Cook 
– Police Chief, Mr. Steve Blount – Town Planner, Mr. Graham Corriher – Town Attorney,
and Ms. Shelly Shockley – Finance Analyst/Planning Coordinator/Events Coordinator

Guests:  Mrs. Sandra Shell, Mr. Mark Wineka, and Mr. Mike Brinkley 

Call to Order  
Mayor Feather called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 

Moment of Silence 
Mayor Feather requested that we pray for the brother of Jim Costantino who is in the 
hospital. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

1. Approval of the Agenda

ACTION:  Alderman Linker made a motion to approve the agenda. Motion seconded by
Mayor Pro-Tem LaFevers. The motion passed with all in favor.

2. Approval of the Consent Agenda
a. Approval of the Minutes

• Special Called Meeting Minutes – December 18, 2017

Town of Granite Quarry Page 4 2/5/2018



• Special Called Meeting Minutes – December 4, 2017
• Regular Meeting Minutes – December 4, 2017

b. Departmental Reports (Reports in Board packet)
c. Financial Reports

ACTION:  Mayor Pro-Tem LaFevers made a motion to approve the consent agenda. 
Motion seconded by Alderman Linker. The motion passed with all in favor. 

3. Citizen Comments (All comments are limited to 6 minutes. No sharing of minutes with
other citizens)

4. Guests and Presentations
None

5. Town Manager’s Update
a. Essentials of Municipal Government – Ethics Training

Ms. Word advised” The Essentials of Municipal Government and LeaderShop Ethics 
Training for newly elected officials will be January 11th – January 12th in Hickory, NC. 
Expenses have already been processed and paid. Please confirm with me that you are 
planning to attend the training.” Alderman Linker and Mayor Feather confirmed they will 
be attending. Alderman Cress stated “I did call and speak with the North Carolina League 
of Municipalities, they indicated there are some trainings that could be done online. The 
lady on the phone did advise that there were certain things that were required, but not 
mandatory. However, it is best that you do it and have it under your belt.” 

Mayor Feather remarked “I have been through it a couple of times, Jim has been through 
it and in the last 20 years, everyone has pretty much been there except one board member.” 

b. 2018 Board Retreat – February 16-17 (need Board direction)

Mayor Feather announced the Board retreat will be February 16th – 17th; the Board will 
need to take action to set that date. We do need feedback from the Board to make sure we 
have things on the agenda that you would like to discuss. A Pre-Retreat Questionnaire went 
out to all Board members and needs to be returned to Ms. Word by 12:00 Noon Monday, 
January 15th.  

6. Old Business

a. Town Appointment Process for Boards and Committees

Mayor Feather advised the Board to read over the old and new versions and get any 
recommendations or changes to the Clerk, and we can make adjustments from there and 
come up with something that is workable for the Board.  Mr. Conrad commented, “What 
you see on the screen is what is currently in place which are actually under the Offices of 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 5 2/5/2018



the Mayor in terms of appointing those committees and then the following pages are a draft 
of a proposed new policy that the Clerk has put together for the Town Board to review.”  

Mayor Pro-Tem LaFevers stated, “My only concern is the word ‘recruit’, it would be 
wonderful if we had enough people that would volunteer, but we don’t, so we have to 
recruit; and sometimes we recruit those who are willing to pursue it.” Mr. Cress 
commented, “I agree with that totally, and I would like to have a little more time to review 
both versions.”  

b. Faith Road Property Update

Mr. Conrad stated, “Staff has done a little research in terms of following up on or trying 
to quantify some of the requests that were identified at the December 18th meeting, so you 
can get a sense of essentially what it would cost the Town for those studies as well as the 
survey. Normal home inspection with the shop - $380.00 - $575.00; Phase I 
Environmental Inspection (ESA) $1,800 - $3,100.00 (2-3 week turn around on most of the 
companies; Cheapest route for both inspections would be $2,180.00 for both.” 

“I wanted to push this information in front of the Board tonight to at least have an idea 
of what it could cost us on the front end, I realize that cost is a potential issue with this 
particular gift to the town as well as some of the stipulations that were identified by Mr. 
Byrd’s attorney.” 

The Town Attorney explained, “I relayed the Board’s position that we would be happy to 
accept the property, but first we want to make sure that the property is what we want to 
accept by doing a property inspection and a home inspection of the property to make sure 
there is no environmental concerns. I explained to Mr. Byrd’s attorney that we did not 
want to accept the property with any restrictions. He responded back indicating that Mr. 
Byrd would like to keep those restrictions in place. I was not optimistic that he was going 
to come off the restrictions.” 

Mr. Conrad, indicated “Mr. Byrd did call the office following the last Board meeting; I 
don’t believe the stipulations were meant to be an ultimatum to the town, I think they were 
meant to be an initial list of items that he would like to see as part of the transfer of the 
property. He was a little concerned about what he perceived as the attitude regarding the 
distribution of his property to the town. I did talk with him a little bit about it and explained 
to him that this is a little different than donating a car to Goodwill. We may just need to 
take a little more direct approach with him versus than dealing thru the attorneys.” 

Mayor Feather recommended, “that this be done more as a negotiation, if the Board wants 
to set some parameters to allow the Mayor and the Manager to work through these 
negotiations since we have contacted Mr. Byrd before. If there are some things that the 
Board would absolutely say no to, then I think we need to have those on the table and let 
Mr. Byrd know that these are just not acceptable to the Board as well as let him know 
what the Board will accept. One of the things that concerns me is it very unusual to have 
an environmental study done on a residential piece of property; that is not a traditional 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 6 2/5/2018



thing that you do. If this property had some type of possible idea that there might have 
been chemical hazard like a gas station on it previously, then it would be traditional to do 
one. This particular property has been in this same family for at least the past 100 years 
or so; and in that time, it has been all residential. I don’t think it would be the right thing 
to do to spend town money on having a study done and there is no real benefit to having 
it done. The house and the building inspection is prudent to do.” 

Mr. Linker asked, why would we spend money inspecting a house that we’re not going to 
use? Mr. Cress asked why would we spend money if he doesn’t meet our restrictions? 
Mayor Feather replied, “Normally in the process of purchasing what you do is enter into 
a purchase agreement with the stipulation that these things need to be done in the process 
of the sale, if these things all work out fine then you proceed to closing; if they don’t then 
you back up.” 

Mr. Linker stated, “Before we accept the property, I wouldn’t have a problem if we erected 
some type of sign or something recognizing the gift from the Byrd family. I am opposed to 
saying that we have to maintain the house forever.” Mr. Feather asked what were the 
items Mr. Byrd requested. Mr. Conrad replied,  

1- “The existing stone structure will be repaired as needed and will be used.  It will
never be demolished.

2- There will be no roads cut through the property other than those needed for walking
paths for visitors to enjoy.
Mayor Pro-Tem LaFevers commented I wouldn’t have a problem with this as long as
we can have access to the building and get parking on the property.”

3- The property will be named Byrd Park.
Mayor Feather explained, “Naming is one thing, making it something is another.”
Mayor Pro-Tem LaFevers asked is it always going to be a park? “When you say Byrd
Park, you’re saying it’s a park forever.” Mayor Feather replied, “That needs to be
discussed and clarified.” Mr. Linker commented, “We can erect a sign saying,
‘Donated by the Byrd Family.’”

4- Tom Byrd will be allowed 90 days after closing to remove any and all items that ae in
the garage building. The consensus agreed that this should also include items be
removed from inside the house as well.

5- At that entrance to the park, there will be placed a stone monument with a list of all of
the Byrd family donors.

6- The town of Granite Quarry will reimburse Tom Byrd for expenses incurred in this
transaction, such as attorney fees, appraisal fees, and currently due property tax.”
Mayor Feather stated, “Whatever his attorney’s fees are, that would be his cost;
there is probably more attorney cost on his end than on our end.” “Attorney Corriher
explained he did give an idea of the cost that they’re asking for; he says to date the
appraisal cost is $550, taxes are about $1200, and legal fees are about $750. He also
said he didn’t expect the Town to pay his legal fees.”

Town of Granite Quarry Page 7 2/5/2018



ACTION:  Mayor Pro-Tem LaFevers made a motion to allow the Mayor and the Town 
Manager to handle the negotiations for the Byrd Property. Motion seconded by Alderman 
Linker. The motion passed with all in favor. 

c. Board Direction on Potential Property Sale of Town Sport Field
(Mr. Marcel Renn)

Mayor Feather read the letter from Mr. Renn indicating interested in purchasing    
the Town Sport Field. 

Mr. Linker asked why did we purchase that property to begin with, and then do we    
still need it? Mayor Feather replied, “The original view of that property was pretty simple, 
the property was looked at as a possible place for leaves and limbs. Through the process 
of that, there was an evaluation done before the purchase of the property and there was 
also an appraisal done on the property to see what value was for the Town to purchase it. 
I’m thinking the amount was around $35,000-$40,000. In the process of that we went and 
got an appraisal, the appraisal for the property was $20,000, and at that point, we went to 
the County and on the tax records, their tax value was $67,000 or some number like that, 
within the day they notified us that they made a mistake, that it’s in a floodplain and they 
dropped his basis for taxes down to $20,000 not knowing the appraisal.” 

“We went back to Mr. Barringer and explained to him basically what we had found and at 
that point we may or may not be interested in the property because of the value. A few days 
later he came back and asked us whether or not we would be interested in purchasing the 
property for $20,000 and at that point it was brought back to the Board, the Board 
discussed it, and the Board looked at it and knew that it didn’t have the value for leaves 
and limbs, that was discovered before the Board meeting. The Board looked at it and 
decided it may serve some purpose for future recreation purposes or future park that can 
be out there, the Board decided to offer him $20,000 for the property; so that’s how we 
ended up with the property; that also took into consideration the 250 house subdivision 
which is right up the street from it and the expenses for the Town would be minimal or 
none based on having the Athletic Association taking care of the general maintenance.” 
Mr. Linker asked, “Is that still the purpose of it?” Mayor Feather replied, “That is still the 
purpose of it as of today, unless this Board chooses differently.” Mayor Pro-Tem LaFevers 
asked, “Is there a Sewer Line Easement across that property?” Mayor Feather replied, 
“There is a Sewer Line Easement, if you’re standing at the front of the property and looking 
from the street back into it, on the left-hand side there is a sewer easement along the left-
hand side and then there is a sewer easement located in the back near the stream that runs 
down the center of the property. The Town owns the sewer easement and the Town owns 
the sewer easement that runs up to the Industrial Park.” 

Mayor Pro-Tem LaFevers commented, “I’m not in favor of disposing of the property at 
this time; there are some things it possibly has potential for in the future.” Alderman Linker 
stated, “The Sewer Line Easement is a big issue that we need to keep in the forefront of 
our minds. Secondly, if there is some possible use for recreation whether it’s a soccer field 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 8 2/5/2018



or whatever, maybe we hold on to it for a bit. We have one Board member absent this 
evening, my suggestion is that we table this item until next month for further discussion.” 

d. Fisher/Brinkley Property – Proposed donation to the Town

Mr. Conrad explained, I received a call from Mr. Paul Fisher asking about two pieces of 
property his family jointly owns with the Brinkley family. Mr. Fisher was in about a year 
and a half ago and spoke with the Mayor and me and he would like to make a donation of 
either parcel to the Town. Now as I understand it, his portion is in both parcels.” Mayor 
Feather commented, “As I understand from previous conversations, both parcels are 
jointly owned 50/50 by the Fishers and the Brinkleys. The Fishers heirs would like to 
donate their 50% to the town which would still leave 50% to the Brinkleys, then being part 
owners with the Town on the remaining 50%, that would basically be the scenario. Both of 
those parcels are owned by these two families and their heirs. From what we have been 
told there will have to be a whole list of people that would have to sign off on this 
transaction. What they are trying to do is get this property out of their hands because they 
are tired of paying the taxes on it and it’s tied into two different families.” Mr. Conrad, 
stated, “Paul did indicate there would be no stipulations on the property, we could use our 
portion for whatever we would like, but he would request that we pay the property taxes 
and any legal fees for the transfer of the property.” 

Mr. Linker asked, “Is it strategic to anything that we need?” “What would we do with the 
property?” Mayor Feather replied, “Potential benefits for the Town, it is an area that is a 
floodplain, most of it. There are some potential parcels on the backside for some residential 
construction which is something I don’t think the Town needs to get into.” Mr. Linker 
asked, “Are there any environmental concerns on this property?” Mayor Feather replied, 
“I don’t believe there is, historically I think there are some concerns, i.e. some areas along 
there near US-52 that was used for a fill; I don’t know whether it was filled with stone or 
rock or something else. I do know that there have been some concerns as to what maybe in 
that fill.” 

Mayor Pro-Tem commented, “I would like for the Town Manager to see if the other owner 
would like to sell their portion of the property.” Mr. Conrad replied, “Staff will do some 
checking into this.” 

7. New Business and Action Items

a. ORDINANCE NO. 2018-01 – To establish Town Hall Remodeling
Committee

Mayor Feather indicated, “This committee is a temporary committee just for the
remodeling and from the recommendation of our legal counsel that would constitute
that we do not have to do it as an Ordinance because the committee would be
temporary not permanent; we will just move forward and establish this committee
and get it up and moving.”

Town of Granite Quarry Page 9 2/5/2018



Alderman Cress asked, “Where can I see a copy of the drawing?” Mr. Conrad 
replied, “Staff can get that out tomorrow morning.” 

 
b. PROCLAMATION – Martin Luther King, Jr. Day 

 
Mayor Feather read the Proclamation that will be presented at the Martin Luther 
King, Jr. Celebration at Mount Zion Baptist Church on Sunday, January 14th at 3:00 
P.M.  

 
c. Public Hearing – To set the Public Hearing for February 5, 2018 to 

consider incentives for “Project Wheel” (The Company is an existing employer 
in Rowan County that is considering a site in Granite Quarry for its potential 
expansion.) 
 
ACTION:  Alderman Linker made a motion to set the Public Hearing to consider 
incentives for “Project Wheel” for Monday, February 5, 2018 at 6:45 P.M. Motion 
seconded by Alderman Cress. The motion passed with all in favor. 
 

d. Board Calendar – presentation by Ms. Tanya Word 
 

Ms. Word informed the Board about the Board calendar. The calendar lists various 
meetings and events. If you know of a government event that is not on the calendar, 
please let me know and I will add it. If you are having problems accessing the calendar, 
please let me know and I will troubleshoot and hopefully rectify the problem. 
 
Mr. Jason Hord presented and introduced Mr. Colton Fries as the newest team member 
of the Maintenance Department.  

 
8. Mayor’s Notes – Announcements and Date Reminders  

a. Joint Planning Board/Board of Aldermen Meeting – January 8 at 5:30 P.M. @ 
Town Hall 

b. CCOG Executive Board Meeting – January 10 at 6:00 P.M. CCOG Offices 
c. Essentials of Municipal Government and Leadership Ethics Training for Newly 

Elected Officials – January 11th – 12th in Hickory, NC 
d. Department of Veterans Affairs Martin Luther King, Jr. Birthday Celebration – 

January 12th @ 1:00 P.M. in the Social Room of Building 6 on the Salisbury VA 
campus 

e. Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr.  – Holiday Parade, January 13 @ 11:00 A.M. – 12:00 
P.M. in Downtown Salisbury 

f. Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr.  Celebration – Mount Zion Baptist Church, January 
14 @ 3:00 P.M. 

g. Town Hall Closed for Martin Luther King, Jr. Day – January 15 
h. Revitalization Team Meeting – January 16 @ 3:30 P.M. 
i. PERC (Parks Events Recreation Committee), Tuesday, January 16 @ 5:30 P.M. @ 

Town Hall 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 10 2/5/2018



j. Rowan County Chamber Power in Partnership/Leadership Rowan – January 18
at 7:30 A.M. @ Trinity Oaks, 728 Klumac Road

k. Cabarrus-Rowan MPO Meeting – January 24 at 5:30 P.M. @ UNC Building of the
NC Research Campus

l. Board of Aldermen Meeting – February 5 at 7:00 P.M. @ Town Hall (Board
Photos will be taken after meeting)

m. CCOG Board of Delegates Annual Meeting – February 7 at 6:15 P.M. @ CCOG
Office

Mayor Feather stated, “In the email from Mr. Conrad dated January 2, 2018 we are
going to need some action by the Board. It says please see the following agenda items
that will be approved by the Board of Transportation on Thursday. We will initiate a
municipal agreement with the Town on both of these projects after approval – Pat Ivey.

Division 9 Rowan – Town of Granite Quarry. Upgrade and extend Veronica Lane to
state standards for addition to the system. [Contingency: $101,040.00]
Division 9 Rowan – Town of Granite Quarry. Installation of curb and gutter and
drainage improvements along US-52 at Church Street. [Contingency: $82,390.00]

ACTION:  Mayor Pro-Tem LaFevers made a motion to go into Closed Session
pursuant to N.C. General Statute Section 143-318.11.A.5.6 for personnel and property
issues, and General Statute Section 143-318.11.a4. Motion seconded by Alderman
Linker. The motion passed with all in favor.

9. Mayor’s Action

a. Closed Session:
A motion is needed as follows: To go into closed session pursuant to N.C. General
Statute Section 143-318.11.A.5.6 for personnel and property issues, and General
Statute Section 143-318.11.a4.

ACTION:  Mayor Pro-Tem LaFevers made a motion to go into Closed Session at 8:02
P.M. pursuant to N.C. General Statute Section 143-318.11.A.5.6 for personnel and
property issues, and General Statute Section 143-318.11.a4. Motion seconded by
Alderman Linker.

A motion is needed as follows: To come out of closed session pursuant to N.C. 
General Statute Section 143-318.11.A.5.6 for personnel and property issues. The 
Board takes the following action (if any). 

ACTION:  Mayor Pro-Tem LaFevers made a motion to come out of Closed Session at 
8:15 P.M. pursuant to N.C. General Statute Section 143-318.11.A.5.6 for personnel 
and property issues, and General Statute Section 143-318.11.a4. Motion seconded by 
Alderman Cress. The motion passed with all in favor. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 11 2/5/2018



ACTION:  Aldermen Lineker made a motion to recess the meeting at 9:20 P.M. until 
Monday, January 8, 2018 at 5:30 P.M. Motion seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem LaFevers. 
The motion passed with all in favor. 

Respectively Submitted 

Tanya Maria Word 
Town Clerk 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 12 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry 
Fire Department 

Established May 15th, 1950 
       PO Box 351  

 www.granitequarrync.gov     Granite Quarry, NC        704/279-5596 

Board Report February/2018 Chief Brown 

Emergency Calls for Service December 2017 
26 calls in district 

• 20 - EMS (including strokes, falls, diabetic, CPR and other Medical needs)
• 1- MVA (motor vehicle crash with injuries)
• 4- SERVICE CALL (non-emergency assistance)
• 1- Carbon Monoxide alarm call

17 calls to Salisbury 
• 8- Alarm/Structure calls canceled En-route
• 4- Staged on scene the released
• 3- EMS
• 1- Vehicle fire
• 1- Move-up

7 calls to Rockwell Rural 
• 4- Alarm/Structure calls canceled En-route
• 2-EMS
• 1-Gas Leak

5 calls to Union 
• 2- Alarm/Structure calls canceled En-route
• 3- EMS

2 calls to South Salisbury -Cancelled En-route 
8 calls to Millers Ferry  

• 5- canceled en-route
• 3- working structure fires

1 call to Rockwell City – Cancelled En-route 
1 call to Spencer -Cancelled En-route 
1 call to Faith- EMS 

TOTAL – 68 

ACTIVITIES 
• Daily activities include apparatus & equipment checks, training, station maintenance,

pre-plan development, hose and hydrant maintenance, water points, emergency response,

Town of Granite Quarry Page 13 2/5/2018



public education, inspections and the assistance of other divisions within the Town of 
GQ.  

• Our monthly training included E.M.T. continuing education. Annual Combat Challenge.
Multiple days of driver training, water point training and district familiarization with new
members. OSHA training.

• Car Seat Check Station on Thursday from 1 p.m.to 4 p.m. – 2 seats installed/checked.
• 1 Station/Apparatus Tours (nonscheduled, Walkup)
• 1 Visit from Church Youth Group
• Site Reviews and Business info updates.
• Officers Meeting
• Winter Storm prep and post clean-up
• Annual Christmas/End of year gathering and awards.

Sean Dunham- Veteran of the year
James Garris- Rookie of the year
Brian Peeples- Officer of the year

EQUIPMENT
• Information gathered and Submitted for Federal Assistance to Firefighters Grant.

Submitted on behalf of the Town of G.Q.F.D by: JMCM consulting.
We are hoping to receive assistance for replacing Self Contained Breathing Apparatus.

• Discovered and corrected an issue with the Engine Turbo on E-571.  Under warranty
• Discovered and working on repair of Hydraulic generator issue on E-571.  The pump is

under warranty Labor cost, fluid and filter are not.  Dodged a bullet, the pump is 5grand.
• Had to re stitch 2 more SCBA harnesses.

Town of Granite Quarry Page 14 2/5/2018



Granite Quarry Maintenance Department 
Monthly Report January 2018  

• Park grounds and bathrooms cleaned weekdays
• Town limbs picked up every other week
• Leaf collection every other week
• Lake Park bank landscape watered twice weekly
• Granite Quarry signs watered twice weekly
• Various pot holes filled
• Christmas light removal
• Street and lot scraping during snow event
• PM checks HVAC – Town Hall and Legion
• Removal of several small downed trees in town roadways
• PM checks on Baldor Generator
• Overhaul on public works/finance office
• Surplus list for board approval

 2007 Ford Truck Mileage – 49,611    +393 miles
1990 Chevy Truck Mileage - 106,679    +0 miles
1995 Ford Dump Truck Mileage – 32,699       +405 miles
2009 Ford Truck Mileage – 43,637         +551 miles

 Jason Hord – Maintenance Supervisor

Town of Granite Quarry Page 15 2/5/2018



Granite Quarry-Faith Joint Police Authority 
P.O. Box 351  143 North Salisbury Ave, Granite Quarry, NC 28072 

Office: (704)279-2952  Fax: (704)209-3047 
 
 

Police Department Report 
 

January 2018 
 
 

• Call volume report for the month of January 2018: 

o Date of Report: 01/29/18 

o Total calls for service/activities - 209           

o Incident Reports- 19         

o Arrest Reports- 7         

o Crash Reports- 13                                                   

o Traffic Citations- 15                                       

o See attached reports: Breakout of total calls for service between 

Townships. 

      

• The following is the ending mileage for each vehicle: 
 

221- End- 52,982   
222- End- 32,055   
223- End- 62,206   
224- End- 40,668  
225- End- 30,000 
226- End- 12,785 
227- End- 13,016 
228- End- 34,126 
229- End- 997  
   

 
• The average response time in January calls for service is 4.06 minutes. 

 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 16 2/5/2018



53Total

GQPD
Number of Events by Nature

CFS Faith Jan 2018

Nature # Events

104D1 RESIDENTIAL BURG ALARM 4

107B1 ASST OTHER AGENCY-ROUTIN 1

113A1 DISTURBANCE - PAST 1

113D1 DISTURBANCE / PHYSICAL 1

115D1 DRIVING UNDER INFLUENCE 1

116D3 DRUG LAB 1

126B1 PAST PERSONAL ROBBERY 1

129C1 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 1

129C3 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE 1

130B3 THEFT FROM VEH (PAST) 1

132C1 SEVERE TRAFFIC VIOLATION 1

911 HANG UP 5

ASSIST MOTORIST 4

ATTEMPT TO LOCATE 1

BUSINESS OR HOUSE CHECK 14

ESCORT FUNERAL OR OTHER 1

MISDIAL 3

REPOSSESSION 1

SCHOOL SECURITY CHECK 1

TRAFFIC CHECK 4

TRAFFIC STOP 4

VEHICLE ACCIDENT PROP DAMAGE 1

Report Generated: 01/29/2018 14:03:17 | User ID: COOKMJ

Page 1 of 1\\rowannc.org\dfs\ossicad\cad\rpt\EventHistory_NumberOfEventsByNature
Town of Granite Quarry Page 17 2/5/2018



GQPD
Number of Events by Nature

CFS Granite Quarry Jan 2018

Nature # Events

102B1 PAST ABUSE 1

103A2  FOUND PROPERTY 2

103A3 LOST PROPERTY 1

104D1 RESIDENTIAL BURG ALARM 6

104D3 RESIDENTIAL HOLDUP/PANIC 1

105D2 ANIMAL-DANGEROUS 1

110B2 PAST RESIDENTIAL B&E 1

110D2 RESIDENTIAL B&E 3

111D1 DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 1

113B2 OTHER NOISE COMPLAINT 2

113B4 DISTURBANCE - NUISANCE 1

113C1 DISTURBANCE-LOUD PARTY 1

113D2 DISTURBANCE / VERBAL 2

114D1 PHYSICAL DOMESTIC 4

115D1 DRIVING UNDER INFLUENCE 3

116D1 DRUGS (USE-POSSESSION) 1

118B2 FRAUD-PAST FORGERY 1

119D2 HARASSMENT 1

123B2 RUNAWAY 2

123D2 MISSING PERSON 1

125B1 CHECK WELFARE - ROUTINE 2

125B2 LOCKOUT - ROUTINE 1

125D1 CHECK WELFARE-URGENT 1

129C1 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 5

129C3 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE 4

129C5 SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCE 2

130B1 LARCENY (ALREADY OCC) 2

130B3 THEFT FROM VEH (PAST) 1

130D1 LARCENY 2

Report Generated: 01/29/2018 14:02:08 | User ID: COOKMJ

Page 1 of 2\\rowannc.org\dfs\ossicad\cad\rpt\EventHistory_NumberOfEventsByNature
Town of Granite Quarry Page 18 2/5/2018



155Total

Nature # Events

131B3 HIT & RUN 2

133D1 TRESPASSING 1

23C1 OVERDOSE OR POISON 1

911 HANG UP 7

ASSAULT WITH WEAPONS 1

ASSIST FIRE DEPT 4

ASSIST MOTORIST 6

ATTEMPT TO LOCATE 1

BUSINESS OR HOUSE CHECK 11

DELIVER MESSAGE 5

DOMESTIC PROPERTY PICKUP 1

ESCORT FUNERAL OR OTHER 1

FOLLOWUP 13

GENERAL INFORMATION 1

MISDIAL 2

PARK CHECK 7

REPOSSESSION 1

SCHOOL SECURITY CHECK 2

SUBPOENA SERVICE 4

TRAFFIC CONTROL 2

TRAFFIC STOP 13

VEHICLE ACCIDENT PROP DAMAGE 10

WARRANT SERVICE 3

Page 2 of 2Number of Events by Nature
Town of Granite Quarry Page 19 2/5/2018



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Planning Department Report 
For 2/5/2018 Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

1. Held Joint Planning Board/Board of Aldermen Meeting. 
2. Working with Manger and Clerk to plan BoA Planning Retreat. 
3. Storm water and erosion control drawings for Village at Granite subdivision received and 

forwarded to our engineer for review and comment. (Update- Our engineer completed 
his review. Review letter returned to developer for corrections and comments.)  

4. Contacted by developer’s engineer concerning planned 25 home subdivision called 
Stoneglen, off Peeler Road. Project was started in 2007 but stopped due to economic 
conditions. Much like Village at Granite, planning and approval process will have to 
begin again due to the long delay. (Update- Met with developer and reviewed issues. He 
is considering his options on this project.) (2nd Update- Developer has hired engineer to 
update plans to comply with current UDO requirements.) 

5. Continuing work on Thread Trail Corridor revision. (Update- Attended Carolina Thread 
Trail Tenth Annual Planning Meeting. Gathered ideas for future trail development in 
our community.) (2nd Update- Securing Rowan County Commission support for 
corridor revision.) 

6. Continuing work of Leaf and Limb storage site. (Update- Working on rezoning request 
for property on Irby Lane to be presented to Planning Board in February and Board of 
Aldermen in March for approval, conditional to sale of property to Town.) 

7. Continuing work of Code Enforcement issues. Have authorized Benchmark Planning to 
begin enforcement actions on one property in our ETJ that has apparent serious UDO and 
Minimum Housing Standards violations. 

8. Met with Roger Crawford concerning replacing an existing mobile home in his park 
located on Dunn’s Mountain Church Road. (Update- Reviewed a list of minor issues that 
would need to be resolved prior to issuing zoning permit for replacement of old mobile 
home with newer model that would meet current standards.) 

9. Discussed with property owners the possible addition of a dog kennel on their property. 
This may require a UDO text amendment to be allowed on their property’s current zoning 
classification. (Update- Working on UDO text amendment to resolve some issues with 
this use.) 

10. SECU- Working with developer and our engineer to finalize approval of storm water and 
erosion control submittals. 

11. Sidewalk Project- Created a set of maps for Alderman Linker to use in his review of 
existing sidewalks in Granite Quarry.  

Town of Granite Quarry Page 20 2/5/2018



12. Working to establish accounting procedure to manage engineering review billings on 
Major Subdivision and Plat Reviews. 

13. Working with EDC to insure our Industrial property off of Chamandy Drive is advertised 
on their web site 

14. Working with Manager and Mayor to secure right-of-way and establish access road to 
our Industrial property off of Chamandy Drive.  

Town of Granite Quarry Page 21 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 22 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 23 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 24 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 25 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 26 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 27 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 28 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 29 2/5/2018



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Aldermen 
 
FROM: Tanya Maria Word, Town Clerk 
 
DATE: January 29, 2018 
 
SUBJECT: Increase Cost of Bereavement Flowers/Memorials 
 
The current policy to purchase bereavement flowers or memorials is $65.00 and the cost 
of flowers for someone in the hospital is $30.00 which was effective August 1, 2013.  
 
As with the cost of everything else, the cost of flowers has increased, including the 
delivery fee.  
 
Considering these increases, I recommend that we revise Procedure Number 420-6 
increase the price to purchase bereavement flowers/memorials to $100.00; and the price 
to purchase flowers for those in the hospital $40.00. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 30 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 31 2/5/2018



PROPOSAL FOR TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY 

January 29, 2018 
 

To Whom It May Concern: 

 

This is a written proposal to discuss the hours involved in helping Shelley Shockley 
establish and monitor all transactions for the Town of Granite Quarry using the 
software system by Southern Systems that is currently in place. The proposal 
discussed in person was from 2-3 hours a week for 6 months. It is complicated to 
establish an exact number of hours. However, I feel that 2-3 hours a week for at least 
2 months is necessary and we may find that the time is needed for the entire 6-month 
period. My proposal price is $5,000 for the 6 months not to exceed 3 hours a week.  
I will be available by phone and email as well during that time-period.  
 

The preceding proposal is for the time period set forth by the Town of Granite  
Quarry for 6 months. I personally would like to start this time period  
February 12, 2018. If that does not agree; then I am flexible. 
 
Thank you in advance for your consideration in this matter. I look forward to  
working with you in the future. 
 

Sincerely; 

 

Martha O. Cranford 

 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 32 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 33 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 34 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 35 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 36 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 37 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 38 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 39 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 40 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 41 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 42 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 43 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 44 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 45 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 46 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 47 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 48 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 49 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 50 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 51 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 52 2/5/2018



 

Surplus Items in Maintenance 
 

 

Giant Vacuum Leaf Machine – 10-yard capacity        -   Blown engine  

 

Staples brand paper shredder                                        -  Will not power up  

 

Delta bench grinder                                                          -  OSHA compliance 

 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 53 2/5/2018



Granite Quarry-Faith Joint Police Authority 
P.O. Box 351  143 North Salisbury Ave, Granite Quarry, NC 28072 

Office: (704)279-2952  Fax: (704)279-6648 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Mayor W. Feather, Mayor Peeler and Respective Boards 
 
From: Chief Mark Cook  
 
Date: 01-29-2018 
 
Ref: Disposal of Police Surplus Property 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________  
 
The purpose of this letter is to request the disposal of the below listed property belonging to the Joint 
Police Authority. Upon the sale of these items, any funds generated will be placed back into the 
Departments capitol vehicle fund.  
 

• One (1) 2007 Crown Vic. White in color, VIN: 2FAFP71W47X147036. Mileage: 136,500.  
 

• Eighteen (18) Size 16 used stud tires (fit Ford Crown Vic’s).   

Town of Granite Quarry Page 54 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 55 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 56 2/5/2018



Office of The Mayor: 

Proclamation 

 
BLACK HISTORY MONTH 

Whereas: the Town of Granite Quarry’s asset remains its citizen; 
and 

 

Whereas: many of Granite Quarry’s residents have taken the time 
and gathered here today, to assist us in celebrating, 
communicating, and proclaiming February as Black 
History Month; and 

 

Whereas: Black leaders have dedicated their lives and earnest 
endeavors for the betterment of mankind, and their 
persistent and unwavering devotion to humanistic 
pursuits shines unparalleled in American history; and 

 
Whereas:   we have never ceased to receive benefit from the 

improved quality of life – past, present, and future.  
Those of whom we speak have enriched the very fabric 
of American society, impacting its spiritual, 
educational, scientific, philosophical, and technological 
realms.  Their lives, with selfless contributions, have 
provided opportunities for all Americans; and 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 57 2/5/2018



Whereas:  the Black History Observance seeks to promote racial 
harmony, respect and understanding of cultural and 
ethnic diversity among the people of Granite Quarry 
and Rowan County. 

 
Therefore:  I, William D. Feather, Mayor of the Town of Granite 

Quarry, North Carolina, do hereby proclaim the month 
of February 2018, as Black History Month. 

 
Adopted this 5th day of February 2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

        ________________________________ 
        William D. Feather, Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________ 
Tanya Maria Word, Town Clerk 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 58 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 59 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 60 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 61 2/5/2018



--G

f

;8Er 

CELEBRATING 50 YEARS OF SERVICE

ee you t ere! 
Wednesday, February 7, 2018 

CCOG Office 

9815 David Taylor Drive, Charlotte, NC 

"My Role as a CCOG Delegate" 

CCOG Board Orientation & Refresher 

Learn about CCOG services and 

programs and meet our staff. 

5:00 pm - 6:00 pm 

CCOG Board of Delegates Meeting 

• Guest Speaker: Former NC Governor
and First CCOG Chair Jim Martin

• Election of Officers and Municipal
Caucuses

• Adoption of Annual Operating Budget

6: 1 5 pm - 8: 30 pm 

Contact Kelly Weston at 704-348-2728 or kweston@centralina.org by January 31 st

to RSVP for yourself or your Alternate. 
Town of Granite Quarry Page 62 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 63 2/5/2018



Town of Granite Quarry Page 64 2/5/2018


	Agenda for February 5 2018
	Recessed Meeting Minutes 010818
	Minutes of January 2 2018 Meeting
	Members Present:  Mayor Bill Feather, Mayor Pro Jim LaFevers, Alderman Kim Cress, Alderman John Linker
	Member(s) Absent:  Alderman Jim Costantino
	Staff:  Mr. Phil Conrad – Town Manager, Ms. Tanya Word – Town Clerk/HR Officer, Mr. Scott Stewart – Deputy Clerk/Finance/HR Analyst, Mr. Jim Philyaw – Finance Officer, Mr. Dale Brown – Fire Chief, Mr. Jason Hord – Maintenance Supervisor, Mr. Mark Cook...
	Guests:  Mrs. Sandra Shell, Mr. Mark Wineka, and Mr. Mike Brinkley

	FIRE DEPARTMENT REPORT FOR JANUARY
	Maintenance Report January 2018
	POLICE DEPARTMENT REPORT - JANUARY
	POLICE CFS Faith Jan 2018
	POLICE CFS Granite Quarry Jan 2018
	PLANNING BOARD REPORT FOR JANUARY
	Finance Deparrment Report January 2018
	POLICY CHANGE - INCREASE PRICE OF FLOWERS
	POLICY CHANGE FLOWERS - ATTACHMENT
	ACCOUNTING PROPOSAL
	TOWN CHECK SIGNATURES LETTER
	LOCALLY ADMINISTERED PROJECT - STATE CONTINGENCY AGREEMENT WBS 47726
	LOCALLY ADMINISTERED PROJECT - STATE CONTINGENCY AGREEMENT WBS 47727
	SURPLUS ITEMS IN MAINTENANCE
	Surplus Items in Maintenance

	DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS ITEMS IN POLICE
	Budget Amendment 12A
	PROCLAMATION - BLACK HJISTORY MONTH
	BLACK HISTORY MONTH
	Whereas: the Town of Granite Quarry’s asset remains its citizen; and


	COURT COSTS FINES
	READY RATING EMERGENCY PROGRAM ATTACHMENT
	CCOG BOARD AND REFRESHER FLYER
	NORTH CAROLINA 2018 BAS WORKSHOP
	CCOG CREATIVE SOLUTIONS FOR THRIVING COMMUNITIES



